
 
 
Councillor Conduct Committee  Contact: Penelope Williams  

Secretary 
Thursday, 17 September 2015 at 6.30 pm  Direct : 020-8379- 4098 
Room 3, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, 
EN1 3XA 

 Tel: 020-8379-1000 
 Ext: 4098 
  
 E-mail: Penelope.Williams@enfield.gov.uk 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
 
Councillors: Claire Stewart (Chair), Elaine Hayward (Vice-Chair), Donald McGowan 
and Joanne Laban 
 
Independent Persons:  Christine Chamberlain and Sarah Jewell  
 
 

AGENDA – PART 1 
 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES   
 
2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 
 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary, non-pecuniary or 

other pecuniary interests relating to items on the agenda.   
 

3. PLANNING AND LICENSING CODES OF CONDUCT  (Pages 1 - 40) 
 
 To review the current planning and licensing codes of practice from Part 5 of 

the Council constitution.   
 

4. DISCLOSURE AND BARRING SERVICE (DBS) CHECKS  (Pages 41 - 48) 
 
 To receive a report on Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checks 

(previously CRB checks).   
 

5. COUNCILLOR TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT 2015/16  (Pages 49 - 54) 
 
 To receive an update on councillor training and development 2015/16.   

 
6. UPDATE ON COUNCILLOR COMPLAINTS   
 
 To receive an update from the Monitoring Officer on the complaints currently 

being considered.   
 

7. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 16 JULY 2015  (Pages 55 - 60) 
 
 To receive and agree the minutes of the meeting held on 16 July 2015.   

 
8. WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16  (Pages 61 - 62) 
 
 To note any changes to the 2015/16 work programme.   



 
9. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   
 
 To note the dates agreed for future meetings:   

 

 Wednesday 2 December 2015 

 Thursday 24 March 2016 
 

10. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 To pass a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting for any items of 
business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those paragraphs of Part 
1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local Government (Access 
to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).  
 
There is no part 2 agenda.  
 

 
 
 



Chapter 5.2 - Planning Committee Code of Practice 
 

(Updated Council 12/11/08, 02/03/11, 11/06/14) 

 
 Introduction 
 
 This Code sets out how the Council expects Councillors to conduct themselves in 

carrying out the business of the Planning Committee, particularly in handling of 
planning applications, etc.  In the main it is a formalising of current practices and 
procedures.  This Code is supplementary to the Members’ Code of Conduct (the 
Members’ Code) adopted by Council on 27 June 2007. 

 
 The Code will be publicised from time to time and will be made available to 

anyone on request.  It will be reviewed periodically, and may be updated at any 
time to maintain compliance with legislation and Government guidance.  A copy 
of the Code is supplied to every Councillor serving on the Planning Committee. 

 
(1) General Role and Conduct 
 
 Councillors and officers have different, but complementary, roles.  Both 

serve the public, but Councillors are responsible to the electorate while 
officers are responsible to the Council as a whole.  Officers advise 
Councillors and the Council and carry out the Council’s work.  They are 
employed by the Council, not by individual Councillors and it follows that 
instructions may only be given to officers through a Council, Cabinet, 
Cabinet Member or Committee decision, in accordance with the Council’s 
scheme of delegation.  They must always act impartially.  Any other 
system, which develops, is open to question.  A successful relationship 
between Councillors and officers can only be based upon mutual trust and 
understanding of each other’s positions. 

 
 The basis of the planning system is the consideration of private proposals 

against wider public interests.  Members of the Planning Committee must 
take decisions on behalf of the community as a whole.  Much is often at 
stake in the process and opposing views are often strongly held by those 
involved.  Whilst members of the Planning Committee should take account 
of those views, they must not favour any person, company, group or 
locality, nor put themselves in a position where they appear to do so.  
Councillors who do not feel that they can act in this way should consider 
whether they are best suited to serving on a Planning Committee. 

 
 Members of the Planning Committee should be prudent about their social 

contacts with known developers and agents, and refrain altogether from 
such contacts when developments are contemplated or applications are 
being proposed or when controversial decisions are likely to be made. 

 



 Members of the Planning Committee may be offered gifts or hospitality 
from people with an interest in a planning proposal.  Such offers should be 
declined.  If receipt of hospitality is unavoidable – for example, where to 
refuse light refreshments on an extended visit would cause offence – 
those receiving it should ensure that it is of the minimum level and should 
declare its receipt as soon as possible.  All offers, whether accepted or 
not, should be recorded in the hospitality book by the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer.   

 
(2) Membership of the Conservation Advisory Group and the Planning 

Committee 
 

The Council agreed on the 12th May 2004 that Councillors should not 
serve on both the Conservation Advisory Group and the Planning 
Committee. 

 
(3) Membership of the Green Belt Forum and the Planning Committee 
 

The Council agreed on the 7th November 2007 that Councillors should not 
serve on both the Green Belt Forum and the Planning Committee. 

 
(4) Declarations and Registration of Interests 
 
 The law and the Members’ Code set out requirements and guidance for 

Councillors on declaring disclosable or other pecuniary interests and the 
consequences of having such interests.  These must be followed 
scrupulously and Councillors should review their situation regularly.  When 
doing so it must be borne in mind that the National Code advises that not 
only should impropriety be avoided but also any appearance, or grounds 
for suspicion, of improper conduct.  The responsibility for this rests 
individually with each Councillor. 

 
 Councillors who have interests, or investments, which would prevent them 

from voting on a regular basis, should avoid serving on the Planning 
Committee. 

 
 The Council’s Monitoring Officer is happy to advise on the Code of 

Practice.  It is for Members of the Planning Committee to interpret this 
advice using the guiding rule that one should not use one’s position to 
further a private or personal interest, rather than the general public interest 
or give grounds for such suspicion. 

 
 Such private interests could arise through family, friends, clubs, 

Freemasons, trade unions and voluntary bodies.  If so, then not only must 
the interest be disclosed, but the Councillors should not take any further 



part in the debate or vote.  The responsibility for declaring an interest lies 
with the individual member. 

 
 
 
(5) Training 
 
 Members of the Planning Committee must exercise their representational 

role on behalf of their constituents.  At the same time the planning process 
requires them to take decisions within a legal framework which is evolving 
continuously through legislation and case law. 

 
 To remain eligible to serve on the Planning Committee Councillors 

appointed to the Committee must have received formal training in planning 
procedures and planning law in the course of their first month of service 
unless they shall have received such training in the proceeding two years. 

 
(6) Lobbying 
 

 (a) Being Lobbied 
 When being lobbied members of the Planning Committee should not 

express an opinion which may be taken as indicating that they have 
already made up their mind on the issue before they have been exposed 
to all the evidence and arguments.  In such situations, they should restrict 
themselves so far as is practical to giving procedural advice, including 
suggesting to those who are lobbying that they should speak or write to 
the relevant officer so that their opinions can be included in the officer’s 
report to the Committee. 

 
 If they do express an opinion, they should make it clear that they will only 
be in a position to take a final decision after having heard all the relevant 
evidence and arguments at Committee. 

 
(b) Organisation of Lobbying 

 In general, members of the Planning Committee should avoid organising 
support for or opposition to a planning application and should not lobby 
other members.  If a member of the Planning Committee feels it 
appropriate to campaign in support of, or in opposition to, a particular 
application, the proper course of action at the committee meeting would 
be to make statement of their views but not to take part in the subsequent 
Committee discussion or to vote. 

 
 A member of the Planning Committee also has a duty to represent the 

view of the electorate.  Therefore nothing in this Code inhibits a member’s 
right to put forward those views and support them if the member wishes, 
at the Planning Committee meeting.  However, members should be 



mindful of possible predetermination or a perception of bias and therefore 
keep an open mind until they have heard all the facts.  The member 
should declare on whose behalf such views are being represented. 

 
(7) Committee Reports 
 
 Each application to be determined by the Planning Committee shall be the 

subject of a written report, which describes the nature of the proposal, and 
the substance of objections or other comments from those notified or 
consulted.  There shall be a clear recommendation for the decision.  
Where the recommendation is contrary to development plan policy this 
must be recorded with a written summary of the material considerations 
which justify the recommendation.  An officer who augments a written 
report with an oral report to the Committee shall make and retain a note of 
that oral report. 

 
(8) Decisions Contrary to Recommendation 
 
 If it appears that the Committee may be minded to make a decision 

contrary to the officer’s recommendation the officer should be given the 
opportunity to explain the implications of the contrary decision before it is 
taken.  The Committee should consider whether to defer the formal 
decision until it has a full draft of the decision before it. 

 
 If a decision is taken contrary to advice (whether for refusal or 

permission), a Minute of the Committee’s reasons shall be made and a 
copy placed on the application file.  Similarly, a note of any additions, 
deletions or alterations to conditions decided by the Committee shall be 
made on the file. 

 
(9) Site Visits 
 
 A site visit will be used only when a proposal is contentious or particularly 

complicated and when in the Committee’s view the expected benefit in 
assisting the Committee to determine the application is substantial.  The 
nature of that expected benefit shall be minuted as the reason for the 
decision to make a site visit. 

 
 A site visit will normally take place immediately preceding the next 

Committee meeting following the decision to make the visit and should be 
arranged by the planning case officer.  The applicant, the occupiers and 
the owners of private land to which access is desirable to consider the 
application shall be notified in writing and prior agreement shall be 
obtained if possible.  The written notice shall make it clear that at the site 
visit only factual information or answers relating to the recorded matters 



which have caused the visit to be made may be given.  No lobbying will be 
permitted. 

 
 Members must not talk individually with applicants, objectors or others in 

the course of a site visit.  So far as practicable, information, question and 
answers should be given in the hearing of all members in attendance.  
The ward councillors will also be notified of and able to attend site visits. 

 
 A note shall be made of members attending site visits. 
 
 (10) Discussions with Applicants 
 
 Discussions between an applicant or potential applicant and the Council 

are encouraged but they should not become, or be perceived to become, 
part of the lobbying process.  Such discussions should therefore take 
place within the following guidelines. 

 
 It must be made clear at the outset that the discussion will not bind the 

Council to a particular decision and that any views expressed are personal 
and provisional. 

 
 Advice should be considered and based upon the development plan and 

material considerations.  Planning policies should be interpreted 
consistently. 

 
 Officers should make it clear whether they are the decision-maker or not.  

They should make a written note of any contentious points at the time and 
confirm this by letter.  Normally, Councillors should direct any approach 
made to them for a meeting to officers.  If practical when Councillors meet 
an applicant or potential applicant a professionally qualified officer should 
attend. 

 
(11) Development Proposals by Councillors and the Council 
 
 Such proposals must be handled in a way, which gives no grounds for 

accusations of bias. 
 
 An officer must not act as an agent for anyone pursuing a planning matter 

with the Council.  Any Councillor who so acts must take no part in the 
decision making process for the proposal. 

 
 Should any Committee member (or a relative) submit their own proposal 

for the Council’s approval they must inform the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer and take no part in processing the determination of it. 

 



 In accordance with the scheme of delegation, such proposals will not be 
dealt with under powers delegated to an officer and must be identified as 
being those of a committee member in a written report to the Planning 
Committee. 

 
 Proposals for the Council’s own development or where it submits 

applications on behalf of another party must be treated in the same way 
as those of private developers, save that they must not be dealt with under 
powers delegated to the officer unless the proposals fall within the “other” 
development category (covering applications for changes of use, 
householder development, adverts and listed building consent) and no 
objection has been received. In such circumstances, the applications can 
be determined under authority delegated to officers. 

 
(12) Protocol for Cabinet Member for Economic Development to attend 

Planning Committee 
 

 The Cabinet member for Economic Development (or equivalent) will be 
able to attend the Planning Committee. His/her role at those meetings will 
be to put forward the Council's views on relevant matters such as policies 
in the Council's Local Development Framework, master planning and 
urban design, and strategic regeneration and economic development 
issues to give a policy context the Committee's deliberations on particular 
matters. He/she will not be a member of the Committee and will not have a 
vote. 

 
His/her role at the meeting will not be dissimilar to that undertaken by the 
Chair of the Conservation Advisory Group in relation to relevant 
matters. 
 
The Cabinet member will be invited by the Chair to comment on any 
particular application prior to the start of any formal debate on that item, 
once any deputations and contributions from ward councillors have been 
received. They will not then be permitted to participate any further in the 
debate with their contribution restricted to those matters identified above 
and will not otherwise participate in the Committee's decision making 
process. 

 
(13) Other Protocols 
 
 Some aspects of procedure are governed by other protocols already 

adopted by the Council.  These include: 
 

 a scheme of delegation whereby the Assistant Director Planning, 
Highways & Transportation has authority to determine certain of 
applications in given circumstances. 



 a procedure allowing applicants and third parties to address the 
Planning Committee. 

 guidelines for publicity and neighbour notification concerning planning 
applications. 

 the Council’s complaints procedure. 
 
 Those protocols shall be followed within the spirit and intent of this Code 

of Practice. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Chapter 5.2(a)– Probity in Planning 
 

London Borough of Enfield 
September 2010 

 
- a guide to procedures and protocol for Councillors & Officers involved in 
making decisions on planning applications and other planning matters 

(Updated Council: 02/03/11) 
 

 
CONTENTS 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
2. BACKGROUND AND BASIC PRINCIPLES 
3. CODE OF PRACTICE 
4. ROLE OF ALL MEMBERS TRAINING 
5. PRE-COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
6. HOSPITALITY 
7. LOBBYING 
8. SITE VISITS 
9. PLANNING COMMITTEE (TAKING THE DECISION -OFFICER 

REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TO COMMITTEE 
10. COMMITTEE PROCEDURES 
11. MONITORING OF DEVELOPMENT  
12. COMMITTEE MEETINGS  
13. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
14. DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS SUBMITTED BY MEMBERS AND   

OFFICERS 
15. PLANNING OBLIGATIONS 



16. COMPLAINTS 
17. PUBLIC ATTENDANCE AT COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
18. PLANNING COMMITTEE  

 

 
APPENDICES 
 
APPENDIX A Code of Practice - Main Elements  
APPENDIX B The Royal Town Planning Institute Code of Professional  
Conduct 
APPENDIX C Council Member Training Syllabus from the Planning Advisory 
Service Member Training Module www.pas.gov.uk 
APPENDIX D Lobbying Members  
APPENDIX E Code of Conduct - Planning Committee Site Visits  
APPENDIX F Planning Committee Procedures  
APPENDIX G Procedures for Public Speaking  

 
 
CODE OF PRACTICE : PROBITY IN PLANNING 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This guidance report gives an overview of probity issues in planning, including 

Members of the Planning Committee training and gives information on the 
approved Code of Practice. 

 
A brief summary of the recommended approach that should be taken by planning 
committee members as well as key issues to avoid is listed below. These are 
covered in greater detail within the body of this guide. Members should be aware 
that the Localism Bill is likely to make changes to planning legislation in a large 
number of areas and will in the future affect how such legislation is implemented 
and considered at Planning Committee.  This Guide will be revised and updated 
once the Localism Bill is enacted and the necessary training will be provided to 
Members 

1.2    
 

 Do listen to all deputations and officer presentations before coming to a 
decision. 

 Do not make statements that can be perceived as predetermining any 
applications 

 

 Do treat all applicants the same irrespective of race, gender, disability, 
nationality, religion, age, sexual orientation, family status or any other irrelevant 
factor. 

 Do not do anything which may cause the Council to breach any of the equality 
enactments (as defined in section 33 of the Equality Act 2006) 



 

 Do deal with all applications in an impartial way and refrain from putting 
inappropriate pressure on officers to change recommendations. 

 Do not do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the 
impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of, the Council. 

 

 Do give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any statutory requirements 
and any reasonable additional requirements imposed by the Council. 

 Do not resolve to overturn recommendations of officers without first if possible 
discussing and confirming planning reasons to do so. 

 

 Do disclose at the planning committee prior to any discussion the existence 
and nature of any personal or prejudicial interest at the commencement of that 
consideration, or when the interest becomes apparent. 

 Do not fail to disclose and personal or prejudicial interest. If there is any doubt 
please consult the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance or the Legal 
Advisor to the committee. 

 

 Do consider each matter on its individual merits and should not give the 
impression that they individually or as a political group have already come to 
their decision before all the material considerations have been taken into 
account. 

 Do not block vote in political block. 
 
 

 Do ensure that at a Site Inspection Panel, questions and answers should be 
given in the hearing of all members in attendance Members must not talk 
individually with applicants, objectors or others in the course of a site visit. 

 Do not talk individually with applicants, objectors or others in the course of a 
site visit.   

 

 Do reject any offers or gifts, hospitality or future favours made personally or to 
the Committee or Council generally.  Where approaches are made details 
should be forwarded to the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance in 
writing. Any offers of hospitality shall be recorded and sent to the Monitoring 
Officer (Assistant Director of Corporate Governance). 

 
 
 
2.  BACKGROUND AND BASIC PRINCIPLES 
 
2.1 This Code of Practice has been produced to provide on the Council’s planning 

functions.  It is produced principally for the benefit of Councillors, especially those 
on the Planning Committee and Officers dealing with planning related matters 
and has regard to current advice and examples of good practice. Most of the 
guidelines included in this document applies prinicipally to Members of the 



Planning Committee however specific guidance for non planning committee 
members is included  in Appendix  H with advice on their involvement with 
applicants and the local community with regard to  planning applications as well 
as opportunities to speak at planning committee 

 
2.2 Probity in planning has been the subject of some scrutiny by central government 

in recent years. This code aims to assist Members of the Planning Committee 
and those Officers who service Planning Committee to make well informed and 
consistent decisions in light of the Council’s Development Plans and the 
government guidance1. 

 
 
3. CODE OF PRACTICE 
 
3.1. It is recommended that each local authority should have its own local code of 

conduct dealing with the issues set out in the guidance2. In response to that 
recommendation the Planning Committee considered a briefing report on Probity 
in Planning in July 2009. Issues were raised by Members about the content and 
recommendations contained within the report.  This guidance document sets out 
the protocol for Members of the Council and Members of the Planning Committee 
in respect of site visits, responding to lobbying and engaging in pre-application 
discussions. The Local Government Association Code sets standards for and 
aims to improve public confidence in the planning system but also provides a 
mechanism for protecting the Council and its Members who act within it. Details 
of the main elements of the Local Government Association Code appear at 
Appendix A to this report.  

 
3.2. Planning law requires Members of Local Planning Authorities to determine all 

planning applications in accordance with the Statutory Development Plan unless 
material planning considerations indicate otherwise. This responsibility must be 
performed without undue influence or personal interest. Members of Local 
Planning Authorities also have a duty to take into account all representations 
made to the Planning Committee including those received as a result of 
consultation with interested bodies, or as a result of public notice or neighbour 
notifications. In doing so it is necessary to decide which representations are 
material to the decision to be made, and, if so, what weight to attach to them. A 
conclusion should not be reached until all the facts have been presented in the 
report and considered at Committee. 

 
 

 
4. ROLE OF ALL PLANNING COMMITTEE MEMBERS TRAINING 
 

                                                           
1
 Nolan Report ‘ Standard of Conduct in Local Government’ and the Local Government Association Paper ‘Probity in 

Planning’ 
2
 ‘Probity in Planning’ Local Government Association 



4.1 The London Borough of Enfield is required by its constitution to provide training 
to all Members of the Planning Committee within one month of their appointment 
to the Planning Committee to enable them to sit on the Planning Committee.  The 
Government endorses this approach and has suggested a syllabus for this 
training which can be seen at Appendix C   The Development Management 
section endeavours to make additional training available for Members of the 
Planning Committee on a variety of topics of relevance usually as  bimonthly 
briefings  carried out by officers. 

 
4.2 The planning system relies on Planning Committee Members and Officers acting 

in a way that is fair, and is clearly seen to be so. Planning decisions must be 
taken openly, fairly, with sound judgement and for justifiable reasons. 

 
4.3 Councillors have two roles in the planning system: 
 

• they make decisions about planning applications, and 
• they act as representatives of public opinion in their communities and convey 
and defend decisions of the Authority to their constituents. 

 
4.4 Planning Officers responsible for the preparation of written reports and for 

advising Members at the Committee meetings will be qualified to an appropriate 
level in Town Planning. Whether or not they are members of the Royal Town 
Planning Institute (RTPI), they will be required to undertake continued 
professional development to a level required by the RTPI.  

 
4.5 Training for Members of the Planning Committee takes various forms, including 

an intensive introductory training session, officer briefings, written notes, updates 
and guidance on new and emerging policy, legislation and other planning issues. 
A record will be kept of all Members’ training and attendance. 

 
4.6 The advantages of these training and briefing sessions are that Members do not 

have to travel far to receive the training, it can be tailored to the particular issues 
faced by the Authority, it is relatively cheap and can be laid on at times to suit 
particular Members. However, internal training may be combined with external 
training so that Councillors gain a wider perspective and see how the same issue 
is tackled by other Authorities. A record will be kept by the Head of Development 
Management of the training undertaken by each Member. 

 
4.7 The Head of Development Management will give newly elected Councillors a 

copy of this guidance along with the Planning Handbook. 
 
4.8 The delivery of the Development Management Service will be monitored and 

reports on performance will be made to the Planning Committee at 6 monthly 
intervals. The Development Management protocols will be reviewed on an 
annual basis.  

 



 
5. PRE-COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 
5.1 Pre-application meetings between potential applicants and Planning Officers are 

encouraged by the Council, and can be of considerable benefit to both parties. 
There is a well established and successful pre-application advice service already 
in operation. 

 
5.2 It should always be made clear at the outset that discussions will not bind the 

Council to making a particular decision. 
 
5.3 Any Member of the Planning Committee receiving a request to attend or organise 

a meeting to discuss a proposal must refer the request as soon as possible to the 
Head of Development Management. This is to ensure that Officers can also be 
present at the meeting and that all parties are given an equal opportunity to 
present their point of view. Members will decline to attend meetings which are to 
be conducted other than in accordance with details as outlined in Appendix D. 
Conducting these pre-application meetings in accordance with Appendix D will 
protect the Member and the Council against adverse perceptions. 

 
5.4 Where an applicant or any other interested party requests a meeting with any 

Member of the Planning Committee to discuss a proposal in advance of its 
determination by the Committee the following general principles shall be 
observed. 

 
(i) The meeting shall take place at the Council offices and shall be arranged 

through the Planning & Environmental Protection Division. 
(ii) Officers will also attend the meeting and no meeting shall occur without 

the presence throughout of officers. 
(iii) A written record will be made of what was discussed at the meeting and 

those present will be advised of this. It may then form part of the 
discussion when considering the various issues. 

(iv) All such meetings will be conducted on the strict understanding that any 
view or opinion expressed by Officers, the Chair, Vice Chair and any other 
Member present, is not binding on the Council and any formal decision 
can only be made by the Committee once it is in possession of all the 
material considerations. This must be expressly stated at the start of the 
meeting. 

 
5.5 Where a Member receives any written representations these should be passed 

on to the Head of Development Management and the Committee Administrator 
within 48 hours of receipt in order that it may be brought to the attention of the 
Committee. Members should minimise their social contacts with developers and 
agents and refrain altogether from such social contact when the Member 
concerned is likely to be involved in deciding a particular matter in which the 
developer or agent has an interest. 



 
5.6 The above advice is directed towards Members of the Planning Committee rather 

than other Members. 
 
 
6.  HOSPITALITY 
 
6.1 Because of the interests involved, the acceptance of gifts and hospitality from 

developers or objectors is likely to lead to allegations of impropriety. Members 
and Officers should reject any offers or gifts, hospitality or future favours made 
personally or to the Committee or Council generally. Great care must be 
exercised. 

 
6.2 Where approaches are made details should be forwarded to the Assistant 

Director of Corporate Governance in writing. Any offers of hospitality shall be 
recorded and sent to the Monitoring Officer and Assistant Director of Corporate 
Governance. 

 
 
7. LOBBYING 
 
7.1 7.1 Although lobbying is an acceptable and normal part of the political process, it 

can lead to questions about whether a Councillor is being honest and impartial. 
 
7.2 Members of the Planning Committee may respond to lobbying and engage in 

pre-application discussions at their discretion as long as the procedures in 
Appendix D are complied with but must expressing views in advance of the 
consideration of all material factors of a case at Committee.  

 
 
7.3 A copy of the code is contained in Appendix D (See also paragraph 5.3 – Pre 

Committee Meetings). Failure to adhere to these guidance notes may give rise to 
the perception of a prejudicial or personal interest which may limit Members 
participation at planning committee. Advice can be sought from the legal section. 

 
 
8. SITE VISITS 
 
8.1 Members of the Planning Committee should only request a site visit where the 

impact or effect of the proposed development is difficult to visualise from the 
plans, photographs and other documents available to the Committee or where 
there is some physical aspect of the proposal which cannot be adequately 
addressed in Committee without a site visit. Site visits help Members of the 
Planning Committee to learn more about an application before they make their 
decision. Committee site visits shall be undertaken in appropriate cases with an 
Officer always in attendance. The purpose of Committee site visits shall 



principally be to view and obtain information about the site and its surroundings. 
This will help Members of the Planning Committee to understand comments 
made by the applicant and objectors. If there is third party/applicant attendance 
Members of the Planning Committee may hear representations but should not 
give comment or enter into discussion. A record of the site visit and findings shall 
be kept, noted in the subsequent Committee report and listed on a background 
paper. 

 
8.2 Appendix E sets out guidance on how site visits shall be conducted. Ward 

Councillors may attend the Site Visit but must adhere to the guidance set out in 
Appendix E. 

 
8.3 The deferral of an application for a site visit shall be to aid the consideration of 

the matters before the Committee. This should be reasonable and the reason for 
deferral should be fully minuted. 

 
 
9. PLANNING COMMITTEE : TAKING THE DECISION – OFFICER REPORTS 

AND RECOMMENDATIONS TO COMMITTEE 
 
9.1 An Officer of the Council will provide to the Planning Committee a report setting 

out the relative merit or otherwise of a particular proposed development and will 
make a recommendation based on their professional opinion  

 
9.2 Reports prepared for the Committee form the basis on which Members’ decisions 

are made. They may be subject to close scrutiny by the Planning Inspectorate, 
the Ombudsman or the High Court and will need to be explained and justified by 
the preparing officer. The report should be clear and accurate and include an 
exposition of the Development Plan, Site and Relevant History, the substance of 
objections and the views of consultees and all material considerations. The 
report should contain a technical appraisal, which justifies the recommendation. 
The decision maker should be able to reach a proper conclusion from the report 
alone. 

 
9.3 Verbal updating at Committee is acceptable but a written note of any changes to 

the recommendation should be circulated where possible. 
 
9.4 The Planning Committee may receive, at the discretion of the Chair, in person 

deputations in relation to a proposed development. 
 
9.5 Any report recommending a departure from the Development Plan must be 

clearly marked as such and must give full and clear justification for such 
departure. 

 
9.6 Members of the Planning Committee will consider the Officer’s report, any 

updates to the Officer’s report and deputations made to the Committee.  



Members may disagree with the Officers recommendation. When a motion is put 
which is contrary to the Officer’s recommendation, the proposer must state 
clearly the planning justification in support of the proposition and, as appropriate, 
the reasons for approval, refusal, or the imposition of any condition. The final 
formal wording of such reasons or conditions can be delegated to the Assistant 
Director of Planning & Environmental Protection and shall appear in the official 
minutes of the meeting. 

 
 
10. COMMITTEE PROCEDURES 
 
10.1 Planning applications shall be determined in accordance with the approved 

scheme of delegation. 
 
10.2 The Agenda for Planning Committee shall be made available to the public at 

least 5 clear working days prior to the date of the Committee as required by 
Section 100B of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985). 

 
10.3 The Agenda for Planning Committee shall include a list of: 
 

 All applications to be determined by the Committee with a recommendation 
from the Assistant Director of Planning and Environmental Protection. 

 All delegated decisions since the previous Committee 

 All Appeals and decisions received. 
 
10.4 The Planning Committee shall operate in accordance with the procedures 

outlined at Appendix F which will be produced in full on each agenda. 
 
10.5 If any application is deferred for determination at a later Committee the reasons 

for this shall be stated before the vote is taken and this will be fully minuted. If an 
application is deferred at the request of a Member of the Committee, this shall be 
proposed and seconded. This will include those deferred for site visits. 

 
10.6 If the Committee decides to grant or refuse permission against the officer's 

recommendation reasons should be given for doing so. This will then be 
recorded in the minutes and may have to be substantiated at any appeal or 
judicial proceedings. 

 
10.7 If any Member wishes to refer an application to the planning committee which 

otherwise would have been dealt with under delegated powers they must follow 
the following steps: 
(i) The requests must be made in writing  to the Assistant Director of Planning 

and Environmental Protection within 21 days of the circulation of details of the 
application (weekly list) 



(ii) The Chair of the Planning Committee has the discretionary power to agree or 
disagree with the call in request from any Member  

 
 
11. MONITORING OF DEVELOPMENT 
 
11.1 Periodic site visits will be conducted to enable Members of the Committee to 

monitor the quality of planning permissions granted. A briefing note will be 
prepared by the Assistant Director of Planning & Environmental Protection  for 
each such visit.  

 
12. COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 
12.1 A Member of the Planning Committee who does not have significant personal or 

pecuniary interest can nevertheless have had contact with an interested party in 
the planning matter which is before the Committee to determine. That contact 
shall be disclosed to the Committee at that meeting and the Member should 
avoid pre-determining their position. 

 
12.2 Members and Officers are required by law to have regard to all material 

considerations and to make a determination in accordance with the Development 
Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 
12.3 Members and Officers should only address their minds to planning 

considerations and shall disregard non-planning considerations when 
considering applications and other planning matters. 

 
 
13. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
13.1 Members of the Planning Committee should consider each matter on its 

individual merits and should not give the impression that they individually or as a 
political group have already come to their decision before all the material 
considerations have been taken into account. 

 
13.2 Whilst Members of the Planning Committee are free to discuss their opinion on 

planning matters at political group meetings, decisions shall not be made on how 
to vote on particular applications prior to the Committee meeting concerned. 

 
13.3 The law and the National Code of Local Government Conduct set out 

requirements and guidance for Councillors, respectively, on declaring pecuniary 
and non-pecuniary interests and the consequences of having such interests. 
These must be followed scrupulously and Councillors should review their 
personal situation regularly. When doing so it must be borne in mind that the 
National Code advises that not only should impropriety be avoided but also any 



appearance, or grounds for suspicion, of improper conduct. The responsibility for 
this rests individually with each Councillor. 

 
13.4 Where a Member of the Planning Committee has had any personal involvement 

with an applicant, agent or interested party which could leave an observer with 
the impression that the involvement could affect the Member's judgement in any 
matter coming before the Committee related to that applicant, agent or interested 
party, the Member concerned shall declare an interest.  There are two types on 
interest: Personal and Prejudicial interests. 

 
13.4.1 Personal interest: is one which affects the Councillor, the members of the 

Councillor’s family or their close associates more than it would a member of the 
public. A personal interest should be declared in the matter and the Councillor 
may continue to consider the application at Planning Committee. 

 
13.4.2 Prejudicial Interest: A personal interest may be a prejudicial interest if the item 

under discussion affects the Councillors financial interests or it relates to a 
licensing, planning or regulatory matter and a member of the public knowing all 
the relevant facts would think that the interest was so significant as to prejudice 
the Councillors judgement of the item. A prejudicial interest should be declared at 
the outset of the meeting or when it becomes known. A Member with a prejudicial 
interest may speak at the Planning committee meeting but they should withdraw 
after they have spoken. This is to ensure they do not influence other Members of 
the committee 

 
13.5 A Member of Planning committee who considers either that they have, or may be 

perceived to have, predetermined their position on a particular item should not 
take part in the consideration or determination of that matter. The Member should 
declare their predetermined position at the outset of the meeting. In the event 
that the Member wishes to address the committee on the application, then, at the 
discretion of the chair they may do so. When the affected Member has finished 
speaking the Member should leave the room. 

 
 
13.6 Members of the Planning Committee who are unsure as to whether to declare an 

interest, should ask the Assistant Director of Legal Services and/or the Assistant 
Director Corporate Governance for advice, although the Member must make the 
final decision. 

 
13.7 Where appropriate, the Standards Committee may provide a dispensation by 

way of an exception in circumstances where Members of the Planning 
Committee declare an interest by virtue of a political membership. 

 
 
14. DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS SUBMITTED BY MEMBERS AND OFFICERS 
 



14.1 Where known, applications by any Member, any Senior Manager or Officer of 
Development Management Services or their spouses / partners must be dealt 
with by the Committee. This rule will apply regardless of whether the application 
is in line with policy, is not controversial, or falls within the scheme under 
delegated powers. 

 
14.2 Members and Officers who have made applications which are before the 

Committee for consideration must declare their interests, and then leave the 
room whilst the application is being considered. 

 
 
15. PLANNING OBLIGATIONS 
 
15.1 Where a planning obligation (usually known as a 106 Agreement) is required or 

offered in connection with any development proposals the Council may negotiate 
these agreements with developers for them to provide local community facilities if 
the Council agree to the development in accordance with any guidance.  

 
15.2 Officers will negotiate with developers and applicants in appropriate cases. 

Members of the Planning Committee may be involved in discussions. Reports to 
the Planning Committee must include a summary of the main points of the 
proposed agreement between the Council and developer. 

 
15.3 Once a planning obligation has been completed it will be entered in a register 

maintained by the Council and be available for inspection by the public unless 
there is a need to respect confidential or commercially sensitive information. 

 
15.4 Members of the Planning Committee receive regular reports on Section 106 

contributions to scrutinise and monitor performance, delivery and outcomes. 
 
 
 
 
 
16. COMPLAINTS 
 
16.1 The Council has a system for reviewing and dealing with complaints. It operates 

a formal complaints procedure, details of which are available from any of the 
Council's reception offices at the Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield. In cases of 
maladministration, the Local Government Ombudsman may be contacted on PO 
Box 4771, Coventry, CV4 0EH or by emailing advice@lgo.org.uk. 

 
 
17. PUBLIC ATTENDANCE AT COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 

mailto:advice@lgo.org.uk


17.1 The Nolan Committee suggests that it is good practice to allow opportunities for 
applicants, objectors and interested parties to make presentation to the Planning 
Committee on the basis that this enhances public confidence and direct lobbying 
may be reduced. 

 
17.2 The practice is set out in Appendix G should apply to everyone including 

residents, applicants, agents and developers. Separate arrangements exist for 
Members not appointed to the Planning Committee to address the Committee.  

 
 
18. PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
18.1 The Planning Committee normally meets every fourth Tuesday at 7:30pm in the 

Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield to consider all planning applications that have 
not been determined under delegated powers. A copy of the scheme of 
delegation is available from the Environment Direct   reception in the B Block 
reception of the Civic Centre. 

 
18.2 The agenda for the Planning Committee is prepared so that it is available for 

public inspection at least 5 full days in advance of the Committee. 
 
18.3 The Planning Committee would normally make one of the following decisions on 

applications placed before them: 
 

 approval of the proposal with or without conditions or the requirements 
to enter into Section 106 Agreements; 

 refusal of the proposal; 

 referral to the Mayor of London with a recommendation to approve; 

 deferral for a Site Visit; 

 deferral for further specific negotiations between the applicant and the 
Council; 

 deferral for specific additional information. 
 
18.4 Public speaking is intended to aid Members to make an informed decision and to 

ensure that the Council’s procedures accord with Human Rights Legislation and 
the principles of Best Value. 

 
18.5 Following any deputations  and a general discussion on the merits of the 

application the formal decision making process is as follows: 
 
 
 
18.6 The first motion is to :- 
 

(a) to accept the Officers recommendation, and               
(b) to grant planning permission 



 
 
18.7 If Members vote not to accept the officer recommendation then a second motion 

is made to 
  

(a) to reject the officers recommendation 
 
 
18.8 Following this there would be a further discussion of the reasons and a further 

motion is made to either:- 
  

(i) grant permission with different reasons 
(ii) refuse permission with reasons 
(iii) defer for a site inspection panel 
(iv) defer the application to request further information  
(v) defer for officers to draft  robust reasons 

 
18.9  Members need to make their vote clear by raising their  hands up and the votes 

will be counted 
 

 



 

Appendix A 
Code of Practice for Members and Officers – Main Elements 
 
It is recommended that the following statements form the basis of this Code of 
Practice. 
 

(i) Members shall at all times act in accordance with the current statutory and/or 
national and local code/s of Local Government conduct. 

(ii) The successful operation of the planning system relies on ensuring that 
Officers and Members act in a way which is not only fair but is clearly seen to 
be so. Members have a particular duty to represent their constituents, but 
also an overriding duty to the wider community. They should act in the 
interests of the general public in relation to planning matters. However, there 
is no reason why a local Member should not participate in the decision 
making process for a particular planning application, provided they abide by 
this code.  

(iii) The role of the Planning Officer is to advise and assist Members in matters of 
planning policy and their determination of planning application by providing 
impartial, professional advice. They will ensure that all the necessary 
information for a decision to be made is provided together with a clear and 
accurate analysis of the issues including setting the application against the 
Development Plan policies and all other material considerations. All reports to 
Members will contain a clear recommendation. 

(iv) The Council endorses the Royal Town Planning Institute (RTPI) Code of 
Conduct, (Appendix B), and in particular that RTPI members shall not make 
or subscribe to any statements or reports which are contrary to their own 
professional opinions. All officers in the Authority advising on planning 
matters are expected to act in accordance with the RTPI Code of Conduct 
whether or not they are RTPI members. Members of the Council should 
respect these professional responsibilities at all times. 



 
Appendix B 
The Royal Town Planning Institute Code of Professional Conduct 
The Chartered Object of the Royal Town Planning Institute is to advance the science 
and art of town planning for the benefit of the public. It is the purpose of this Code to 
ensure that in all their professional activities members of the Royal Town Planning 
Institute: 
 

(a) shall act with complete competence, honesty and integrity; 
(b) shall fearlessly and impartially exercise their independent professional 

judgement to the best of their skills and understanding; 
(c) shall discharge their duty to their employers, clients, colleagues and others 

with due care and diligence in accordance with the provisions of this Code; 
(d) shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, sex, creed, religion, disability or 

age and shall seek to eliminate such discrimination by others and to promote 
equality of opportunity; 

(e) shall not bring the profession or the Royal Town Planning Institute into 
disrepute. 

 
To this end the Council has drawn up the undermentioned numbered clauses which 
spell out in more detail the requirements of this Code. These requirements shall apply 
notwithstanding any permission or agreement to the contrary by or with the client or 
body employing or consulting any member. 
In this Code the word “member” means every corporate member, non-corporate 
member, honorary member and students of the Institute. Words purporting the singular 
number include the plural and vice versa. 
 

(i) Members shall take all reasonable steps to maintain their professional 
competence throughout their working lives and shall comply with the Council’s 
continuing professional development regulations as amended from time to time. 

 
(ii) Members who, as employers or managers, have responsibility for other members 

shall take all reasonable steps to encourage and support such other members in 
the maintenance of professional competence and in compliance with the 
Council’s continuing professional development regulations. 

 
(iii) In their professional activities members shall not discriminate on the grounds of 

race, sex, creed, religion, disability or age and shall seek to eliminate such 
discrimination by others and to promote equality of opportunity. 

 
(iv) Members shall not make or subscribe to any statements or reports which are 

contrary to their own bona fide professional opinions and shall not knowingly 
enter into any contract or agreement which requires them to do so. 

 
(v) Members shall take all reasonable precautions to ensure that no conflict of duty 

arises between the interests of one employer or client and another, or between 



the interest of any employer or client and the interests of themselves or their 
firms or business associates. Any such conflict shall be immediately reported and 
subsequently confirmed in writing to all parties concerned. 

 
(vi) Members shall not disclose or use to the advantage of themselves, their clients’ 

information acquired in confidence in the course of their work. 
 

(vii) Members shall disclose to their employers or clients any discounts, gifts or 
commissions received from any third parties in connection with their work as 
professional planners. 

 
(viii) Before commencing work on any commission members shall ensure that their 

terms of engagement have been given and confirmed in writing to their clients 
and shall satisfy themselves that these terms have been accepted. 

 
(ix) Members shall notify their clients in writing before undertaking work or incurring 

fees or expenses additional to those previously agreed and shall satisfy 
themselves that the necessary instructions have been received. 

 
(x) When accepting instructions from private individuals members shall ensure that 

the services offered are appropriate to the individual’s requirements. 
 

(xi) The Council may from time to time publish supplementary regulations relating to 
such matters as continuing professional development, planning aid, professional 
indemnity insurance, professional designations or direct professional access to 
the Bar, and members shall comply with any such regulations. 

 
(xii) Members with responsibility for the work of a company or of a practice or 

partnership or of a local planning authority or of any central government 
department or agency or of any other organisation or body any of which is 
engaged in town planning work, or for the work of any department, section or 
team within any such organisation or body, shall take all reasonable steps to 
ensure that all town planning matters in the organisation or body, or within that 
part of the organisation or body for which they have responsibility, are conducted 
in accordance with this Code, whoever undertakes such work. 

 
(xiii) Members practising outside the United Kingdom and Ireland shall order their 

professional conduct in such a way as to uphold the status and integrity of the 
Royal Town Planning Institute and the profession of town planning. 



 
Appendix C 
External Planning Advisory Service Training Modules 
 
The Planning Advisory Service provide online guidance and advice on their website 
www.pas.gov.uk . Members are encouraged to view these guidance and briefing notes 
as a valuable reference in addition to the in house officer training and briefings. The  
most relevant area  pertains to Development Management and this module includes 
sections on 

 The culture of development management 

 Pre application advice 

 Resourcing implications 

 Councillor Involvement in Development Management 
 
 
 
 

http://www.pas.gov.uk/


 
Appendix D 
Lobbying and Members 
 
Elected Members, when approached by an individual or group in respect of either a 
current or proposed application should: 
 

 Listen to and note the facts and opinions expressed; 

 Advise the lobbyists to submit these views in writing to the Assistant  Director 
of Planning & Environmental Protection; 

 Explain the decision making process of the Council; 

 Avoid giving, or appearing to give, any commitment as to the likely outcome of 
the proposal; 

 Make it clear that any opinion given is personal and not the position of the 
Assistant Director of Planning  & Environmental Protection; 

 Pass on information of any such discussions to the Assistant  Director of 
Planning &  Environmental Protection; 

 Declare any contact under these circumstances at the relevant Committee 
before any vote is taken.  

 
Elected Members may be requested to meet with prospective applicants or other 
interested parties. Such meetings should not be common practice. However, when such 
meetings are held Members of the Planning Committee should: 

 Advise the Head of Development Management of the intention to hold such a 
meeting: 

 Discuss the need for an officer to attend: 

 Ensure that an accurate record of the meeting is provided in writing to the 
Assistant  Director of Planning & Environmental Protection  to include within the 
application file: 

 In accordance with the National Code of Conduct, Members should avoid 
placing themselves in a position that could lead the public to thinking they are 
seeking preferential treatment for themselves, for relatives or friends or any 
firm or body with which they are personally connected. 

 
 



 
Appendix E 
Code Of Conduct 
Planning Committee Site Visits 
 

1 All site visits to be undertaken by the Planning Committee will be determined by 
the Chair of the Committee prior to the finalisation of the agenda for any 
particular meeting. A site visit will be used only when a proposal is contentious or 
particularly complicated and when in the Committee’s view the expected benefit 
in assisting the Committee to determine the application is substantial.  The 
nature of that expected benefit shall be minuted as the reason for the decision to 
make a site visit. 

 
2 A site visit will normally take place immediately preceding the next Committee 

meeting following the decision to make the visit and should be arranged by the 
planning case officer.   

 
3 The applicant, the occupiers and the owners of private land to which access is 

desirable to consider the application shall be notified in writing and prior 
agreement shall be obtained if possible.  The written notice shall make it clear 
that at the site visit only factual information or answers relating to the recorded 
matters which have caused the visit to be made may be given.  No lobbying will 
be permitted. 

 
4 Members must not talk individually with applicants, objectors or others in the 

course of a site visit.  So far as practicable, information, question and answers 
should be given in the hearing of all members in attendance.  The ward 
councillors will also be notified of and able to attend site visits. 

 
5 A note shall be made of members attending site visits. 

 
6 The Committee will arrive on time at the site. 

 
  
7 Site visits do not commence until the Chair or his nominated substitute and the 

authorised officer of the Council has arrived on site. 
 

8 The Chair of the Committee will introduce the participants and explain the 
purpose of the inspection making it clear that the panel is not authorised to make 
a decision on the application. 

 
9 The authorised Case Officer will set out the main issues relating to the 

application, i.e. what the application involves, relevant planning policies, the main 
grounds of objection and relevant responses from consultees. 

 



10 There will be an opportunity for Members of the Committee to ask questions to 
the officer. 

 
11 The site meeting will be conducted with all those attending remaining together as 

a single group throughout. No lobbying will be permitted. 
 

12  Documents, letters, or positions concerning the planning issues or the site visit 
from any party will not normally be accepted at any site visit. 

 
13  The Chair will terminate the meeting and the Committee will depart. 



 
Appendix F 
All applications reported to Committee have been considered and determined in 
accordance with principles set out in:- 
 
The Human Rights Act; 
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act; 
The report on the Lawrence Inquiry. 
 

1 Full written reports are included for consideration by the Committee. Planning 
officers will make further comments or representations to the Committee where he 
feels this will add to the consideration of matters by Committee. All items will be 
considered in the order on the printed agenda unless the Chair is made aware of 
a large public presence in respect of a particular item when, with the Committee’s 
agreement, the order may be changed. 

 
2 Other than Members of the Committee, other Councillors, with the prior 

agreement of the Chair, officers of the Council and those registered to make 
deputations, no one else will be allowed to address the Committee. The 
Committee will determine applications in accordance with the recommendation of 
the Assistant Director of Planning & Environmental Protection unless they 
consider material considerations override this recommendation. In order that the 
process is fair and transparent the Chair shall carry out the following steps: 

 
(i) Invite Members of the Planning Committee to vote on the recommendation 

outlined in the report 
(ii) If Members of the Planning Committee vote not to agree with the officer 

recommendation then Members need to make one of the following decisions 
(a) Encourage the formation of tentative  reasons for approval or refusal by 

discussing a predisposition with planning officers  
(b) Writing down the reasons as part of a mover’s motion; 
(c) If a very strong objection from officers on validity of reasons, Members 

should consider deferring the matter to another meeting to have the 
putative reasons tested and discussed 

(d) If no strong objection the Chair may invite a Member vote on any of the 
following outcomes 

(i) overturn the recommendation 
(ii) defer the application for putative reasons to be tested and 

discussed among officers 
(iii) defer the application for a site visit 
(iv) defer the application for further negotiations to address the 

committee’s specific concerns 
(v) defer the application for further information to be submitted to 

address the committee’s specific concerns 
 

 



3 If the planning committee makes a decision contrary to the officers’ 
recommendation (whether for approval or refusal), a detailed minute of the 
committee’s reasons should be made and a copy placed on the application file. 
Thus, members should be prepared to explain in full their reasons for not agreeing 
with the officer’s recommendation. The officer should also be given an opportunity 
to explain the implications of the contrary decision. 

 
4 After each application has been considered the Chair will state the outcome of the 

application. 



 
Appendix G 
Procedures for Public Speaking 
 

1. Public speaking will only be permitted where the applicants, objectors, developers 
or agents’ comments have previously been submitted in writing and the procedure 
for registering to speak has been complied with. Details of current procedure can 
be obtained from Democratic Services. 

 
2. The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance must be notified by Midday on 

the day before the Committee meeting. This can be in writing or by e-mail or by 
telephone. Details including the name, address, and day-time contact number 
must be left. 

 
3. At the discretion of the Chair objectors have a total of five minutes, or this time 

can be split amongst objectors for two or more objectors, to address Committee. If 
other people have requested to speak on an item details will be provided and then 
it will be decided on how their views are presented. Any deviation on this would be 
at the discretion of the Chair of Planning Committee. 

 
4. Public speaking will be permitted whenever the application is considered by the 

Planning Committee, i.e. if the application is deferred a further address to 
Committee will be permitted in certain circumstances i.e if the application was 
deferred for additional information. Normally no further deputations will be heard if 
the application had previously been deferred for a Site Inspection Panel.  

 
5. Those people addressing Committee will be advised when they have 30 seconds 

of their allotted five minutes remaining and will be expected to cease talking 
immediately on being advised that the five minutes is up. 

 
6. Ward Councillors are also afforded 5 minutes to make a deputation. 

 
7. Those people who have advised the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance 

of their desire to address Committee are requested to identify themselves to the 
Committee Clerk 15 minutes before Committee commences. This will enable the 
order of the discussion of items on the agenda to be varied at the Chair’s 
discretion if it is appropriate. 

 
8. The discussion on applications will be in the following order: 

(i) Chair of Planning to announce the application 
(ii)  Planning officers will  present the item 
(iii) Objector to address Committee 
(iv) Ward Members (not on Planning Committee) to address Committee 
(v) Applicant/agent to address Committee 
(vi) Planning officers or if appropriate other Council officers to respond to any  

issues raised 



(vii) Members questions and debate 
(viii) Planning officers or if appropriate other Council officers to respond to any 

issues raised 
(ix) Proposition 
(x) Vote 
(xi) In addressing the Committee applicants, agents, supporters and objectors 

are requested to restrict their comments to issues which are material 
planning considerations. Advice on what constitutes a material consideration 
may be obtained from the Development Management Service. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
Appendix H 
Guide to non planning committee members on involvement in planning 
applications 
 

Lobbying is an acceptable and normal part of the political process and non planning 
committee Members may meet with applicants and/or objectors and may quite freely 
make their opinions known. 
 
If any non planning committee Member wishes to refer an application to the planning 
committee which otherwise would have been dealt with under delegated powers they 
must follow the following steps: 

(iii)The requests must be made in writing  to the Assistant Director of Planning 
and Environmental Protection within 21 days of the circulation of details of the 
application (weekly list) 

(iv) The Chair of the Planning Committee has the discretionary power to agree or 
disagree with the call in request from any Member  

 
Members of the Planning Committee may engage in pre-application discussions. 
 
Members may request to speak at committee with the permission of the chair, and they 
need not advise Democratic Services in advance, they will normally be allowed 5 
minutes to speak. 
 
 



Chapter 5.3 – Licensing and Gambling Code of Conduct 
 

(Updated:  Council 23/1/08) 
 

THE LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 
LICENSING & GAMBLING CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
 
1. DEFINITIONS 
 
1.1 “Licensing Committee” (‘the Committee) refers to the Committee established in 

accordance with Section 6 of the Licensing Act 2003 and consists of at least ten, 
but not more than fifteen, Members of the London Borough of Enfield (‘the 
Council’) as Licensing Authority. 

 
1.2 “Licensing Sub-Committee” (‘the Sub-Committee’) refers to no more than three 

Members of the Committee meeting as its Sub-Committee. The Sub-Committee 
is responsible for hearing applications made under the Licensing Act 2003 and 
the Gambling Act 2005. 

 
 
2. INTRODUCTION 
 
2.1 This Licensing & Gambling Code of Conduct (‘the Licensing Code’) relates to the 

conduct of all Members in respect of both licensing and gambling, including 
Members of the Committee and any Sub-Committees appointed. 

 
2.2 The Code is supplementary to the Members’ Code of Conduct (‘the Members’ 

Code’) adopted by Council on 27 June 2007. 
 
 
3. MEMBERS’ ROLE IN OPPOSING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE LICENSING 

ACT 2003 AND THE GAMBLING ACT 2005 
 
3.1 The role of Members in opposing applications differs depending on whether the 

application was made under the Licensing Act 2003 or the Gambling Act 2005. 
 
3.2 The role of Members in opposing applications for premises licence or club 

premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 is as follows: 
3.2.1 Members may represent persons who live in the vicinity or persons 

involved in a business in the vicinity, but only when asked to do so. 
Members may also sum up on behalf of the person/s they are 
representing. Where interested parties present at the hearing ask 
Members to sum up on their behalf, Members may choose to do so, but 
then must confine themselves to matters which arose during the hearing 
and/or were contained within the letters of representation; 



3.2.2 Members may make representations in a personal capacity, subject to the 
restrictions as set out in paragraph 5.6 below. 

 
3.3 The role of Members in opposing applications for premises licence under the 

Gambling Act 2005 is as follows: 
3.3.1 Members may represent persons who live sufficiently close to the 

premises to be likely to be affected, or persons who have business 
interests that might be affected by the authorised activities but only when 
asked to do so. Members may also sum up on behalf of the person/s they 
are representing. Where interested parties present at the hearing ask 
Members to sum up on their behalf, Members may choose to do so, but 
must then confine themselves to matters which arose during the hearing 
and/or were contained within the letters of representations; 

3.3.2 Members may make representations in personal capacity, subject to the 
restrictions as set out in paragraph 5.6 below; 

3.3.3 Members may send a letter of representation to the Licensing Unit  and 
then may orally address the Sub-Committee without being asked by a 
resident specifically to do so (i.e. a general ward representation); 

3.3.4 In order to make oral representations before the Licensing Sub-
Committee, members must first send a letter of representation to the 
Licensing Unit within the specified timeframe. Where Members have a 
personal and prejudicial interest, the letter of representation must also 
outline the existence and nature of the interest; 

3.3.5 If a Member decides not to attend the Sub-Committee hearing to make 
oral representations, their letter of representation will still be taken into 
account if it relates to one of the grounds for determination (see paragraph 
7.7); 

3.3.6 If Members making a general ward representation have no interest, or a 
personal interest only, they may remain for the duration of the hearing; 

3.3.7 If Members making a general ward representation have a personal and 
prejudicial interest, they may attend the Sub-Committee hearing to make 
oral representations, answer questions or give evidence about the matter 
(provided that the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the 
same purpose), they must then leave the room for the duration of the 
meeting but may be present for the announcement of the decision. 

 
 
4. GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY 
 
4.1 Members of the Licensing Committee should have particular regard to public 

perception when accepting any gift of hospitality from licensed premises (being 
premises licensed under the Licensing Act 2003 or Gambling Act 2005) in 
respect of which they might be called upon to consider an application, and should 
act with extreme caution when accepting any gift whatsoever, regardless of the 
monetary value. 

 



4.2 It is generally acceptable for Members to accept light non-alcoholic refreshments 
(such as tea, coffee, soft drink, juice, biscuits, light snacks) whilst attending a 
meeting in an official capacity. 

 
5. MEMBERS’ INTERESTS – LICENSING AND GAMBLING APPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Members must comply with Part 2 of the Members’ Code, which deals with 

Interests. 
 
5.2 Members must always declare any personal interest, or personal and prejudicial 

interest, as defined by the Members’ Code. The existence and nature of an 
interest must be declared when Members are sitting on the Sub-Committee or 
appearing before the Sub-Committee. This should include interests where 
Members have some doubt whether or not it is declarable and such an interest 
should be notified in advance of the hearing to the Legal Advisor for that hearing. 

 
5.3 Members with a personal and prejudicial interest must not sit on the Sub-

Committee and determine the application. As a general rule, Members are not 
invited to sit on any Sub-Committee which will consider applications relating to 
the ward which they represent. 

 
5.4 Members with a personal and prejudicial interest may make an application under 

the Licensing Act 2003 or Gambling Act 2005, or act as a representative for the 
applicant, and may then attend the Sub-Committee hearing for the purpose of 
making the case, answering questions or giving evidence (provided that the 
public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose). 

 
5.5 Members may be present for the announcement of the decision whether or not 

they are representing a party or have a personal and prejudicial interest. 
 
5.6 Members who live in the vicinity of a premises subject to an application under the 

Licensing Act 2003, or who live sufficiently close to a premises subject to an 
application under the Gambling Act 2005 so as to be likely to be affected by 
gambling, would generally be regarded as having a personal and prejudicial 
interest. In such circumstances Members with a personal and prejudicial interest 
may: 
5.6.1 Send a letter of representation to the Licensing Unit within the specified 

timeframes for making representations. The letter of representation must 
also outline the existence and nature of the interest; 

5.6.2 Attend the Sub-Committee hearing to make oral representations, answer 
questions or give evidence about the matter (provided the public are also 
allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose). In addition, whilst 
this is a matter for the Member, it is suggested that a Member with a 
personal and prejudicial interest may wish to consider whether or not their 
involvement could be such as to make it unwise for them to participate 



because of an adverse potential impact on the reputation of themselves or 
of the Council; 

5.6.3 In order to be able to make oral representations before the Sub-
Committee, Members must first send a letter of representation to the 
Licensing Unit. If a Member decides not to attend the Licensing Sub-
Committee hearing to make oral representations, the letter of 
representation will still be taken into account if it relates to one of the 
grounds for determination (see paragraphs 7.6/7.7) and the Member lives 
in the vicinity (Licensing Act 2003) / sufficiently close (Gambling Act 2005). 

 
5.7 It is accepted that Members of the Sub-Committee may have visited the licensed 

premises in their personal lives. Members should declare if it amounts to a 
personal interest, or a personal and prejudicial interest. 

 
5.8 Members involved in Council meetings which approved the Licensing Policy and 

the Gambling Policy, are not excluded from the Licensing Sub-Committee 
because of such involvement. 

 
 
6. LOBBYING 
 
Of Licensing Committee Members  
 
6.1 If a Sub-Committee Member is approached by persons wishing to lobby him/her 

about a licence application under the Licensing Act 2003 or Gambling Act 2005 
that they will be determining, then that Sub-Committee Member must politely 
explain that they cannot discuss the matter and refer the lobbyist to the Licensing 
Unit or to his/her Ward Member. However the member can explain the process of 
decision making in general terms. 

 
6.2 Any written presentations received by a Sub-Committee Member should be 

passed to the Licensing Unit. Any such approach received in time should also be 
reported at the hearing at which the application is being determined. 

 
6.3 Requests for procedural advice with regards to licensing applications should be 

referred to the Licensing Unit for advice and information. 
 
Of or by all other Members 
 
6.4 Other Members must not lobby Members who sit on the Sub-Committee, directly 

or indirectly, in writing or otherwise, in respect of items to be decided by the Sub-
Committee with a view to influencing their decision. Any representation by other 
Members, on behalf of an interested party, should be sent to the Licensing Unit 
for inclusion in his report. 

 
 



7. GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR SUB-COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
 
7.1 In respect of any application listed for consideration by a particular Sub-

Committee, Members of that Sub-Committee must avoid expressing personal 
opinions prior to the hearing. To do so would indicate that the Member has made 
up his or her mind before hearing all the evidence. 

 
7.2 Those Sub-Committee Members must not take nor declare a view on the merits 

of the application nor organise support or opposition in advance of the hearing, 
and must keep an open mind until after they have considered all the evidence 
and arguments presented. 

 
7.3 Those Sub-Committee Members should not form or show bias against or in 

favour of any particular person, company or group or any particular site or locality 
nor give the impression that they have done so. 

 
7.4 Those Sub-Committee Members cannot represent one of the interested parties 

or applicant. 
 
7.5 Decisions of the Sub-Committee shall not be taken in accordance with a political 

party direction given at a previous party group meeting or otherwise. 
 
7.6 For applications heard under the Licensing Act 2003, the Sub-Committee must 

make their decisions based on the Licensing Objectives, having regard to the 
Guidance and Licensing Policy. 

 
7.7 For applications heard under the Gambling Act 2005, the Sub-Committee should 

aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as they think it: 
7.7.1 in accordance with any relevant Code of Practice; 
7.7.2 in accordance with any relevant Guidance; 
7.7.3 reasonably consistent with the Licensing Objectives (subject to 7.7.1 & 

7.7.2 above); and 
7.7.4 in accordance with the authority’s statement of Gambling Policy (subject to 

7.7.1 & 7.7.3 above). 
 
 
8. NATURAL JUSTICE 
 
8.1 Members of the Sub-Committee must comply with the rules of natural justice, 

ensuring that parties have an opportunity to be heard, whilst acting fairly and 
impartially. When the Sub-Committee is making its determinations, the following 
principles must be considered: 
8.1.1 Free from the appearance of bias – Sub-Committee Members must make 

an objective and impartial determination of the issues based on the 
evidence and should not make, or give the appearance of making, a 
biased decision. Members of the Licensing Committee should not make 



any public statements which may give the impressions to the public that 
they may not be objective when sitting on any Sub-Committee. Bias may 
include pre-judged ideas based on his/her own prejudices or party political 
influences; 

8.1.2 Fair hearing – For a hearing to be fair a number of conditions must be 
satisfied, including the right for the individual to know the opposing case; 
generally the right to call witnesses; the ability to question witnesses; the 
right to legal representation; and generally the right to be given reasons 
for any decision made. 

 
 
 
 
9. CONDUCT AT HEARINGS 
 
9.1 Members of the Sub-Committee should not communicate directly with the 

applicant, interested parties or responsible authorities (N.B. the Licensing Unit is 
not a responsible authority) either immediately prior to the hearing, during the 
hearing, or after the hearing, other than publicly through the Chair. 

 
9.2 Licensing Sub-Committee Members’ questioning of speakers is to clarify 

arguments and views, and care should be taken not to express or indicate a view 
at that stage, nor to intimidate speakers. 

 
9.3 Any material considered by the Sub-Committee that does not comprise part of 

any material supplied by the Licensing Unit must originate only from the 
applicant, an interested party or responsible authority, and must be tabled 
through the Chair. The nature of any such material must be clear to all present at 
the hearing and available for inspection. 

 
9.4 Members must comply with the ‘Procedures to be followed at hearings of the 

Licensing Sub-Committee’, as amended from time to time. 
 
9.5 Members should not take part or vote on an item if they have not familiarised 

themselves with the report and letters of representation and been present 
throughout consideration of the item. 

 
 
10. RECORDING OF REASONS 
 
10.1 The Sub-Committee must give reasons for its decisions. The reasons will be 

published in the minutes. 
 
10.2 Members of the Sub-Committee should be aware of the dangers in publicly 

discussing the reasons with persons other than relevant Council officers prior to 
the formal publication of the minutes and subsequently.  



 
 
11. APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED BY THE LOCAL AUTHORITY 
 
11.1 Where the Local Authority applies for a premises licence under the Licensing Act 

2003 for open spaces or buildings which it owns, or where there is a variation 
application or review in respect of such open spaces or buildings, the Sub-
Committee must hear and determine this application / review in exactly the same 
manner as other applications / reviews. The Sub-Committee must give no regard 
to the interests of the Council itself, aside from receiving relevant representations 
on this issue. 

 
11.2 A dispensation to hear such applications will not usually be necessary, as a 

Member will not have a personal and prejudicial interest solely through being a 
Councillor. 

 
11.3 Members who are part of the authority’s decisions to apply for the licence, or who 

express a view in respect of such an application, should not also be part of the 
Sub-Committee. 

 
11.4 Members of the Sub-Committee must be aware of any potential appearance of 

bias and must endeavour to avoid giving any potential appearance of bias even 
though none exists. 

 
 
12. SITE VISITS 
 
12.1 Site visits are generally unnecessary and can risk putting the Members and the 

Licensing Unit at risk of accusations of potential bias. 
 
 
 



 



  

JB /   153121 / 356352  Page 1 

 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2015/16 73 
 
MEETING TITLE AND DATE:  
Councillor Conduct Committee 
17 September 2015        
 
REPORT OF: Andrew Fraser, Ray 
James, Bindi Nagra, Tony  
Theodoulou 
Directors of Schools and Children’s 
Services; HHASC; Assistant Director; 
Assistant Director of Children’s 
Services      
 
Contact officer and telephone number: 
Jill Bayley – jill.bayley@enfield.gov.uk 
020 8379 6475      
 

  
 
1. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

  
 1.1 This report reflects on the recent events in Rotherham and the publication 

of the most recent report by the Government led by Louise Casey (publication 
date 4th February 2015). 
  
1.2 One of the concerns raised in the Casey report was that many Members 
had not had Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checks in their role as 
Members, even though they were eligible for the checks because of their 
position as Members. 
 
1.3 Members, whose role as members gives them access to children or 
vulnerable adults, or information on these groups, are eligible to have 
enhanced DBS checks in their roles as elected members. 
 
1.4 There is currently a high level of concern about child sexual exploitation 
and about suitable scrutiny of local authorities’ roles in addressing it.  It is 
essential for Enfield’s reputation to ensure that all proper safeguards are in 
place around children and vulnerable adults. 
 
1.5 In light of the serious concerns raised about appropriate DBS checks in 
Rotherham, it is recommended that we ensure that appropriate checks of 
Members are undertaken, and that a clear policy for obtaining and keeping 
records of DBS checks in appropriate cases is put into place.  

  

 

  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
 2.1 It is recommended that the policy should require all Members of the 

Cabinet and Shadow Cabinet, all Members of any committee with a social 

Subject: DBS checks for members 
 
 
 

Wards: All 

Agenda - Part: 1  
 

Cabinet Member consulted:  

Item: 4 

mailto:jill.bayley@enfield.gov.uk


  

JB /   153121 / 356352  Page 2 

 

care function, whether relating to adults or children, all Members with any 
education function and the Mayor and Deputy Mayor to have current DBS 
checks.  

  

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 On 26 August 2014 the report of Professor Alexis Jay into child sexual exploitation 
(CSE) in Rotherham was published.  This report found shocking evidence of sexual 
exploitation of at least 1400 children in Rotherham between 1997 and 2013.  The report 
raised concerns about the role that members of Rotherham Council had played in the 
investigation of the abuse, and of related matters such as management of the children 
and young people’s service and taxi licensing, as some of the abuse involved use of taxis 
to take children to places where they would be sexually exploited. 
 
3.2 As a result of the Jay report, the Secretary of State appointed Louise Casey CB to 
inspect and report on Rotherham Council’s exercise of its functions in the areas of 
governance, children and young people and taxi and private hire licensing.  This report 
was published in February 2015. 
 
3.3 The Casey report highlighted a wide variety of serious failings in all the areas 
considered.  Most relevant to this report are the failures of governance, in particular 
around appropriate checks on members. 
 
3.4 The Casey report notes (page 79) that ‘very few Councillors had been checked in 
the role of “councillor” or “elected member”…there has been no historic, systematic 
checking of members who had access to vulnerable children’. 
 
3.5 Currently in Enfield DBS checks are undertaken on Members in the following 
positions: 

 Members of Adoption Panel 

 Members of Fostering Panel  

 Cabinet members for Culture, Sport, Youth and Public Health, and for Culture and 
Leisure had DBS checks until recent changes; currently the Cabinet Member for 
Education, Children’s Services and Protection has a DBS check 
 

3.6 At present, no Members sit on panels considering vulnerable adults cases.  
 

3.7  Human Resources (HR) undertake DBS checks of relevant Members on request 
from the appropriate committee or panel administrator.  The checks obtained are 
enhanced disclosure checks and cost £49.00 each.  At present central files on Members 
are being set up which will include information on DBS checks. It is recommended that a 
policy should be considered to establish which Members should have DBS checks and in 
what circumstances, including when further checks would be required.    
 
3.8 Local authorities do not seem to have a uniform approach to DBS checks. Having 
undertaken some benchmarking with other Local Authorities it appears that some 
undertake blanket checks of all Members.  Legally, this may only be justified if all 
Members have a role in discharging education or social services functions relating to 
children or vulnerable adults (see 3.10-3.11 below).  A more common approach was for 
DBS checks to be undertaken only for Members who can clearly be shown to be eligible 
because of discharging education or social services functions.   



  

JB /   153121 / 356352  Page 3 

 

 
3.9 A draft policy is attached for consideration in Appendix 1. 
 
3.10 The Police Act 1997 (Criminal Records) Regulations 2002 set out the 
circumstances in which a request for an enhanced criminal record certificate may be 
made.  These include considering the applicant’s suitability to engage in ‘regulated 
activity relating to children’ and considering the applicant’s suitability to exercise defined 
functions relating to vulnerable adults. 
 
3.11 The activity or functions referred to include someone who fulfils the following 

criteria: 

 A member of a local authority and discharges any education functions, or social 
services functions (relating to children, or adults receiving a health or social care 
service), of a local authority 

 A member of an executive of a local authority which discharges any such functions 

 A member of a committee of an executive of a local authority which discharges 
any such functions 

 A member of an area committee or any other committee of a local authority which 
discharges any such functions 

 
3.12 As serious concerns have been raised about governance in Rotherham Council, 
including the lack of appropriate DBS checks for members, it would be in Enfield’s best 
interests to ensure that appropriate checks of Members are undertaken, and that a clear 
policy for obtaining and keeping records of DBS checks in appropriate cases is put into 
place.  This policy should also set out the procedure to be followed if a DBS check 
reveals any matters of concern.  
 
3.13 As at May 2015 the list of relevant committees and Panels is believed to be as 
follows: 

 Overview & Scrutiny (which has standing items on Children’s Services) 

 Adoption Panel 

 Corporate Parenting Panel 

 Fostering Panel 

 Joint Consultative Group for Teachers and Staff Forum – also known as the “Staff 
Forum” 

 Member Governor Forum  

 Schools Forum 

 Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education 

 Learning Difficulties Partnership Board 

 Child Sexual Exploitation task group 

 Deaf Community Forum 

 Local Safeguarding Children Board 

 Enfield Targeted Youth Engagement Board  

 Children with Disabilities Partnership Board  

 Children’s Services Risk Management Panel  
 
3.14 It is recommended that the policy should require all Members of the Cabinet and 
Shadow Cabinet, all Members of any committee with a function relating to children or 
vulnerable adults or education, all Members with any education function and the Mayor 
and Deputy Mayor to have DBS checks.      
 
 



  

JB /   153121 / 356352  Page 4 

 

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 One option considered was whether it would be appropriate to require all 63 
Members to have DBS checks.  This option was rejected because the circumstances in 
which a person is eligible for a DBS check are limited, and it would be unlawful to seek a 
DBS check on a person who is not eligible for a check.  In the case of Members, it is only 
lawful for DBS checks as Members to be sought where their role as Members fulfils the 
criteria as set out in 3.10 and 3.11 above.  The current structure of governance and 
Members’ areas of responsibility in Enfield means that only some Members appear to 
fulfil these criteria and therefore only some Members are legally eligible for DBS checks 
to be undertaken.  
  
4.2 Do nothing – this would leave Enfield at risk of damage to reputation in light of the 
serious current concerns about governance raised in Rotherham.      
 
5. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
5.1 There is currently heightened interest in ensuring that councils act appropriately to 
ensure that the failures of practice and governance identified in Rotherham are not 
repeated elsewhere.  One of the failures identified in Rotherham was in ensuring that 
appropriate DBS checks had been undertaken of Members with responsibility for children 
by virtue of their role as members.  It is proposed that a clear policy should be in place in 
Enfield.      
 
6. COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND 

CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS 
 

6.1 Financial Implications  
 

All costs associated with the DBS checks can be found from within existing 
budgets. 
      

 
6.2 Legal Implications 
 
 Section 113B (2) (b) of the Police Act 1997 requires the Disclosure and 

Barring Service (DBS) to issue an enhanced criminal record certificate in 
certain circumstances, where the certificate is required for a prescribed 
purpose.  Prescribed purposes include establishing the applicant’s 
suitability to carry out the following positions, in relation to both adults and 
children: 

 

 A member of a local authority and discharges any education functions, 
or social services functions (relating to children, or adults receiving a 
health or social care service), of a local authority 

 A member of an executive of a local authority which discharges any 
such functions 

 A member of a committee of an executive of a local authority which 
discharges any such functions 

 A member of an area committee or any other committee of a local 
authority which discharges any such functions 

 



  

JB /   153121 / 356352  Page 5 

 

The proposals set out in this report comply with the above legislation. 
 
A clear policy on appropriate checks on members with access to 
information on children and vulnerable adults will reduce the risk of litigation 
and damage to Enfield’s reputation.      

 
6.3 Property Implications 
 None 
  

7. KEY RISKS  
 
 Although Enfield has not experienced the same difficulties as Rotherham, in order 

to avoid potential criticism or negative perception of Enfield it is vital that the 
criticisms levelled at Rotherham are taken on board.  One of the key criticisms 
made of Rotherham was that an appropriately rigorous policy on DBS checks of 
Members had not been adopted.  By adopting and implementing a lawful and 
rigorous policy on DBS checks for Members the risk of damage to Enfield’s 
reputation on this count is greatly reduced. 

 
8. IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES  

8.1 Fairness for All 
 
 The proposals set out in this report will ensure that children and vulnerable 

adults receive a safe service from Enfield, and that Enfield can demonstrate 
that the Council has taken all appropriate precautions.      

 
8.2 Growth and Sustainability 
 
 See above.      
 
8.3 Strong Communities 
 
 See above.      

 
9. EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS  
  

None.       
 
10. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  
  

None.      
 
11. HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  
 
12. HR IMPLICATIONS  
 

Human Resources will continue to administer DBS checks within existing 
resources for Councillors who meet the DBS criteria for a Disclosure Application.   

 
The Democratic Services Team will, at the start of each municipal year, at the 
point of a change of membership and at the point any new body is incorporated, 
work with colleagues in relevant council departments in identifying which 
committees (in addition to Cabinet and Shadow Cabinet) deal with social care and 



  

JB /   153121 / 356352  Page 6 

 

/ or education functions and will then notify Human Resources of the names of the 
relevant Councillors to ensure that up to date DBS checks are in place. 
  

13. PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None.      
 
 Background Papers 
 
 See Appendix 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

JB /   153121 / 356352  Page 7 

 

Appendix 1 
Draft policy – DBS checks for Members 

 
1. A clear DBS check is a requirement for all Members of the Cabinet and Shadow 

Cabinet, all Members of any committee with a function relating to children or 
vulnerable adults or education, all Members with any education function and the 
Mayor and Deputy Mayor, except in the circumstances set out in (6) below. 

2. All Members fulfilling the functions set out in (1) above are required to apply for 
DBS checks and supply all relevant documentation within 14 days from their 
appointment unless the Member is already fulfilling such functions and already has 
or has applied for a DBS check. 

3. If a Member’s DBS check comes back not clear s/he would be unable to fulfil any 
of the functions set out in (1) above with immediate effect from the date of receipt 
of the DBS check. 

4. If the Member whose DBS check is not clear wishes to continue to fulfil the 
function set out in (1) above, the Member may ask for the Monitoring Officer to 
approve an exception to the Policy.   

5. The Member may make representations orally or in writing to the Monitoring 
Officer.  The Monitoring Officer will consult the relevant Director before reaching a 
final decision.   

6. If the Monitoring Officer is satisfied that an exception may be made s/he will 
provide written authority to that effect which will be placed on the Member’s file.  
Once the written authority has been received by HR the Member may fulfil the 
functions set out in (1) above. 

7. A Member who refuses or fails to apply for a DBS check within 14 days of their 
appointment to a function set out in (1) above is ineligible to fulfil the functions set 
out in (1) above. 

8. If a Member applies for a DBS check and provides the correct documentation to 
support an application, but for any reason DBS does not process the application, 
the Member shall be deemed to have a clear DBS check until any DBS check is 
received. 

9. The detail of all DBS checks and the contents of any discussions between the 
Member, the Monitoring Officer and/or the relevant Director concerning the 
outcomes of DBS checks shall remain confidential. 

 





 

MEETING TITLE AND DATE  
Councillor Conduct Committee 
17 September 2015  

Agenda - Part: 1 Item: 5 

Subject: 
Member Development Update  
 
 
Wards:  Non specific  

  

  
Cabinet Member consulted: 
 

 

REPORT OF: 
Claire Johnson Scrutiny Manager Tel: 020 8379 4239  
e-mail: Claire.johnson@enfield.gov.uk 
 

  
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 1.1 This report provides an outline of the member development 

programme and provides an evaluation of the feedback of training 
that has already been delivered at Appendix 1.  

  
  
  
  

 

  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
 2.1 To note the progress on the member development programme. 
  
  
  

 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Member and Democratic Services Group endorsed the development of a 

member training  programme. 

3.2 Some ad hoc training was provided in the 2014/15 municipal year, but for 
2015/16, there is now a more structured approach, with monthly dates 
scheduled into the Councils Calendar of meetings, to allow members to have 
availability in their diaries to attend the development sessions if they wish.   

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2015/2016 REPORT NO. 72 

mailto:Claire.johnson@enfield.gov.uk


3.3 Sessions are publicised well in advance to members, and reminders are sent 
out nearer the time to attendees. 

 

4. MEMBER DEVELOPMENT 

4.1 The following training was scheduled following consultation with the Member 

& Democratic Services Group  

4.2 At members requests a couple of additional dates have been included to 

cover all the subjects that have been asked for, so on occasion there are 2 

sessions in one month. 

Date Topic Trainer Status 

14th January 2015 Scrutiny Induction Training  Centre for Public 

Scrutiny 

17 attendees 

30th March 2015 Data Protection Training Legal 12 attendees 

15th April 2015 Social Media Training HR 9 attendees 

12th May 2015 Equalities Training HR 7 attendees 

Thursday 8th July 2015 Planning pre-determination Legal 10 attendees 

Wednesday 15th September 

2015 

Constitution and code of conduct Legal confirmed 

Wednesday 28th October  Safeguarding  Children’s Services confirmed 

Thursday 29th October 2015 Gang awareness Community Safety confirmed 

November Ward surgeries – Case 

work/personal safety/members 

enquiries 

Governance tbc 

Wednesday 25th November 

2015 

Chairing skills  External confirmed 

Thursday 14th January 2016 Presentation and public speaking External confirmed 

Thursday 11th February 2016 Conflict resolution External tbc 

April 2016 Assets of Community Value Property tbc 

 

4.3 The majority of the training is being delivered using the expertise of Officers 

in-house thereby limiting the costs of the programme.   



4.4 Where external providers are used this is either because we felt it best to 

have an independent trainer e.g. for Scrutiny, Chairing skills and conflict 

resolution, or because they have a good package.  When external providers 

are used it’s suggested that a minimum number of attendees are required in 

order to ensure value for money. 

4.5 In addition to the member development programme, training opportunities are 

circulated to members from the Local Government association, and individual 

members have been booked on specific courses as requested to assist with 

their roles.  Training needs are also identified through the Scrutiny process, 

and several councillors attended a safeguarding and child protection half day 

session through this route. 

4.6 Appendix 1 provides an extract of the feedback from the training delivered 

through the programme and the results are positive. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Appendix A 

Scrutiny Induction Training:  

Trainer: External - Cfps 

Attendees: 17 

 Very Somewhat Neutral Not very Not at all 

Satisfied ? 15 2    

Met 

Objectives ? 

15 2    

Interesting 17     

Pitched at 

the right 

level 

14 3    

Relevant to 

my work ? 

17     

 

Data Protection:  

Trainer: Internal - legal  

Attendees: 13 

 Very Somewhat Neutral Not very Not at all 

Satisfied ? 8 5    

Met 

Objectives ? 

11 2    

Interesting 10 3    

Pitched at 

the right 

level 

9 4    

Relevant to 

my work ? 

12 1    

 



 

Social Media :  

Trainer: Internal - HR 

Attendees: 9  

 Very Somewhat Neutral Not very Not at all 

Satisfied ? 5 2    

Met 

Objectives ? 

5 2 1   

Interesting 3 4 1   

Pitched at 

the right 

level 

5 1 1   

Relevant to 

my work ? 

3 2 1   

 

Equalities: 

Trainer: Internal - HR 

Attendees: 7  

 Very Somewhat Neutral Not very Not at all 

Satisfied ? 4     

Met 

Objectives ? 

4     

Interesting 4     

Pitched at 

the right 

level 

4     

Relevant to 

my work ? 

3 1    

 

 



 

Planning Pre-determination: 

Trainer: Internal - Legal 

Attendees: 10 

 Very Somewhat Neutral Not very Not at all 

Satisfied ? 9 1    

Met 

Objectives ? 

10     

Interesting 9 1    

Pitched at 

the right 

level 

9 1    

Relevant to 

my work ? 

7 1 2   

 

 

 



 

COUNCILLOR CONDUCT COMMITTEE - 16.7.2015 

 

- 48 - 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COUNCILLOR CONDUCT COMMITTEE 
HELD ON THURSDAY, 16 JULY 2015 

 
COUNCILLORS  
 
PRESENT Claire Stewart, Elaine Hayward, Donald McGowan and 

Joanne Laban 
 
Independent Persons:  Christine Chamberlain and Sarah 
Jewell 

 
OFFICERS: Asmat Hussain (Assistant Director Legal and Governance) 

Penelope Williams (Secretary) 
 

  
71   
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES  
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.  There were no apologies for 
absence.   
 
72   
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of interest.   
 
73   
MEDIA RELATIONS FOR COUNCILLORS  
 
The Committee received for information a copy of the extract from the 2014 
Members Handbook concerning press and communications.   
 
David Greely, Corporate Communications Manager, gave a short presentation 
on Media and Social Media for Councillors.  Copies of the slides are attached 
to the agenda.   He highlighted the following:   
 

 All code of conduct principles apply when working with the media. 

 The Communications Team do not formally advise individual ward 
councillors, they work with the executive and scrutiny leads. 

 There are risks with using social media, but the benefits outweighed 
the risks. 

 When using social media members should be clear about their 
messages, stick to three per communication and keep reiterating, 
share and credit information and have an idea about what they want to 
achieve.  Act as a person, not a slogan or a machine, and avoid getting 
angry.  When chatting on line they need to be wary of what they are 
saying and aware that things can be picked up and used in ways they 
had not intended. 

 The LGA website has some very useful information on the use of social 
media.  Links would be sent round to members. 



 

COUNCILLOR CONDUCT COMMITTEE - 16.7.2015 

 

- 49 - 

 David Greely offered to speak at a future training session for members, 
if it would be helpful.   

 
AGREED to note the information provided.     
 
74   
CHANGE IN THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA  
 
Members agreed to change to the order of items considered at the meeting.  
Item 6 was bought forward for consideration after item 4.  The minutes reflect 
the order on the published agenda.   
 
75   
WORK PROGRAMME 2015-16  
 
The Committee received a draft copy of the work programme grid for 2015-16. 
 
NOTED 
 
1. The item on treating would be removed from the work programme as it 

was not felt to be appropriate to Enfield.   
2. A report on the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) had been drafted 

and approved by the Council Management Board.  This would be 
brought to the Committee for consideration at the next meeting.   

 
AGREED to adopt the work programme for 2015-16 as received with the 
addition of the above amendments.   
 
76   
CHANGES TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT ON THE DECLARATION OF 
INTERESTS  
 
NOTED  
 
1. The Committee had received a report at the last meeting concerning 

changes to the Councillor Code of Conduct on who the declaration of 
disclosable pecuniary interests, whether it should include interests 
relating “family members or persons with whom you have a close 
association or personal relationship” which was beyond the statutory 
minimum. 

2. Councillor Elaine Hayward reported that she had spoken to the 
Conservative Group and that there had been a mixed response as to 
whether the remits should change.  Some were in favour, some felt that 
it should remain as it was.   

3. There was a concern that not all members were disclosing matters that 
related to other family members and that perhaps more training was 
needed on this.  

4. It was acknowledged that it was difficult to define “close association”, 
but advice could be sort from the Monitoring Officer.   



 

COUNCILLOR CONDUCT COMMITTEE - 16.7.2015 

 

- 50 - 

5. Councillor Claire Stewart reported that the Labour Group had also 
discussed the possible change but felt that it came back to the public 
perception “Would a member of the public, with knowledge of the 
relevant facts, reasonably regard your interest as so significant that it is 
likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest?”   Considering 
this they felt that it would be better to leave the code as it was.   

6. The use of the term “kinship” was also discussed.  It was felt that this 
was covered by the term “close associate” and it was up to each 
individual to judge whether they thought that they needed to declare an 
interest.   

7. This issue will be kept under annual review.   
 
AGREED that the code should remain as it was.   
 
77   
INTERNET AND EMAIL USAGE POLICY FOR COUNCILLORS  
 
The Committee received for information a copy of the Members Information 
Security Policy.   
 
Mohi Nowaz, Corporate Systems Assurance Manager, advised members that: 
 

 The Members Information Security Policy had been written with a view 
to adding to it when it became clear what more information and 
guidance would be required. 

 The ipads which most councillors had were not part of the council 
network and so there were difficulties monitoring the activity on them.   

 
NOTED 
 
1. There was a full email and internet policy for staff which could be 

adapted for members. 
2. Councillors should use their council email for Council business.   
3. All members had signed the Members Information Security Policy, 

when they received their IT equipment last year.   
4. The suggestion that the Member’s Information Security Policy be 

updated to include reference to the Code of Conduct and including 
clear guidelines and expectations.  The words “acting professionally 
should be followed by “in accordance with the Code of Conduct”. 

5. Misuse of the Council’s IT equipment would be covered by the Code of 
Conduct.  Any criminal offence could be picked up during routine 
maintenance and would be reported to the police.   

 
AGREED that changes would be made to the Member and Information 
Security Policy to include reference to the Code of Conduct.  Mohi Nowaz 
would bring a revised version back to the next meeting in September.   
 
78   
GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY  
 



 

COUNCILLOR CONDUCT COMMITTEE - 16.7.2015 

 

- 51 - 

The Committee received an annual report from the Monitoring Officer 
updating members on the entries in the gifts and hospitality register for 2015-
16 and including a guidance note on the process.    
 
Asmat Hussain, the Monitoring Officer presented the report to the Committee.    
 
NOTED 
 
1. There had been a slight increase on the amount of gifts and hospitality 

registered from 2013/14 to 2014/15.  The amounts declared in Enfield 
were lower than other similar boroughs.   

2. Declarations mainly involved meals or galas.   
3. The gifts and hospitality register is open to public inspection.   
4. It was felt that the sentence “Would I have been given this if I had not 

been a councillor?” was key to understanding whether or not something 
should be declared. 

5. If a member was being personally targeted, for their position of 
influence, it was felt that this should be declared.   

6. The timing – that notification must be given within 28 days - should be 
included in the guidance note and enlarged on the form.   

7. A report to the Councillor Conduct Committee would be made annually. 
8. The guidance note would be added to the Member’s Portal.   
 
AGREED  
 
1. To adopt the guidance note as set out in Appendix 1 of the report with 

the above amendments.   
2. To note the data for the period 2014-15.   
 
79   
DISPENSATIONS  
 
The Committee received an annual report from the Monitoring Officer 
updating them on the dispensations granted during 2014-15.   
 
NOTED 
 
1. This would in future be reported to the Committee annually. 
2. There was only one dispensation granted in 2014-15 relating to 

opposition priority business.   
 
AGREED to note that the Monitoring Officer had granted one dispensation to 
councillors at the Council meeting held on Wednesday 25 March 2015, which 
allowed all of them to participate in the debate and decision on the Opposition 
Priority Business item:  the cost of temporary accommodation and what can 
be done about it.   
 
80   
UPDATE ON CURRENT COMPLAINTS  
 



 

COUNCILLOR CONDUCT COMMITTEE - 16.7.2015 

 

- 52 - 

The Committee received a verbal update from the Monitoring Officer on the 
councillor complaints currently being considered.     
 
Asmat Hussain, Monitoring Officer, reported that there were no complaints to 
report.   
 
81   
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 24 MARCH 2015  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 24 March 2015 were received and agreed 
as a correct record.   
 
82   
DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
Members noted the dates agreed for future meetings of the Committee: 
 

 Thursday 17 September 2015 

 Wednesday 2 December 2015  

 Thursday 24 March 2016  
 
 
 





Councillor Conduct Committee – 17 September 2015  
  

Revised 3 September 2015  
 

Councillor Conduct Committee: Work Programme 2015/16 

 

ITEM Lead/ Support 
Officer 

 
16 July 2015 

 
17 September 

2015 

 
2 December 

2015 

 
24 March 

2016 

Annual Report Asmat 
Hussain/Penelope 

Williams  

  
 

 To agree 
Annual Report 

2015/16 

Work Programme 2015/16  Asmat Hussain/ 
Penelope Williams  

To Agree the 
Outline Work 

Programme for 
2015/16  

Work 
Programme 
Monitoring 

Work 
Programme 
Monitoring  

Work Programme  
Monitoring 

Review of Code of Conduct 
and Complaints Processes  

Asmat Hussain   
 

 Review 

Update on Complaints 
Received 

Asmat Hussain Update Update  Update  Update  

Independent Persons 
Training 

Independent 
Persons  

  Report on 
training 

Received 

 

Complaints – Review of 
complaints received in 

2015/16  

Asmat Hussain      

Member Training    Update    

Media Relations for 
Councillors  

David Greely Report     

Gifts and Hospitality  Asmat Hussain Report     

Internet and Email Usage 
Policy for Councillors   

Mohi Nowaz Report   Update   

Review of Planning and 
Licensing Committees Code 

of Practice 

  Report   

Regular update on Standards 
Matters – bringing members 
attention to recent standards 
news items for information.  

Asmat Hussain If required  If required  If required  If required  

Review of Protocol for 
Member Officer Relations 

     

Review of Member’s 
Expenses 

   Report   

      




	Agenda
	3 Planning and Licensing Codes of Conduct
	4 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Checks
	5 Councillor Training and Development 2015/16
	7 Minutes of the meeting held on 16 July 2015
	8 Work Programme 2015/16

